
j'"''l*?l,i'
it **/ n:s

Oakland-Alameda Countv
Coliseum Authority

OAKLAND.ALAM EDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

NOTICE AND AGENDA
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OAKLAND ARENA PLAZA CLUB
TOOO COLISEUM WAY
OAKLAND CA 94521

March 28,2025

9:00 A.M.

REMOTE ATTENDANCE

Nate Mitey
Eastmont Town Center
Suite 270
6955 Foothitt Btvd.
Oaktand, CA 94605

You are invited to a Zoom webinar!
When: Mar 28,2025 09:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Topic: OACCA Speciat Board Meeting 3.28.25
Join from PC, Mac, iPad, or Android:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/S1588203164?pwd=8SM-uVwgR-pvajypakaQG,tWPab6tge.:
nBn5ixSkiesEdQJ

Passcode:377A34

Phone one-tap:
+ 1 66944491 7 1,, g 1 5gg 2031 64#,,,,*377034# US
+ 1 6699006833,, 8 1 588 2031 64#,,,,* 377 034# US (Sa n Jose)
Join via audio:
+1 669 4449171 US+1 669 900 6833 US (San jose)+1 253205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)+t ga6 2487799 US (Houston)
+1 719 359 4580 US+1 386 347 5053 US+1 507 473 4847 US
+1 564 217 2O0O US+1 646 931 3860 US+l 689 278 1000 US
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)+1 361 7 15 8592 US (Washington DC)+1 3O5 224 1 968 US
+1 309 205 3325 US+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)+l 360 209 5623 US

Webinar lD:815 8820 3164
Passcode:377034
I nternationaI n umbers avaitable: https://us06web.zoom. us/u/ket2VFXcGs



1. CALLTOORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. OPEN FORUM

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5. REPORTS

5a.

1. Second Quarter Budget Report
2. Food and Beverage Service for the Stadium
3. JPA Treasurer (County Auditor) proposed Amendment
4. Outside Legal Council

5b. General Manager Report

6. NEW BUSINESS

a. RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE RETENTION OF
OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL TO ASSIST THE OAKLAND.ALAMEDA
COUNTY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY WITH LEGAL SERVICES ON
AN AS NEEDED BASIS FOR A PROJECTED NOT TO EXCEED
AMOUNT OF $25O,OOO OVER THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

b. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
WITH MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELL LLP FOR AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE
OAKLAND.ALAMEDA COUNTY
COLISEUM AUTHORITY AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $115,734.00.

7. AUDIT PRESENTATION FY 2023.24

8. CLOSED SESSION

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION:
lnitiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(dX2,
4)(one case)

9. REPORT FROM COUNSEL ON CLOSED SESSION

10. ADJOURNMENT



CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair Kaplan called the meeting to order at 9:13 am
ROLL CALL

V.Chair Kaplan
Commissioner Beam
Commissioner Houston
Commissioner Vukasin

Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
February 21,,2025

Board Meeting Minutes

Chair Miley (remote)
Commissioner Thompson
Commissioner Haubert (remote)
Commissioner lglesias

Motion to attow Commissioner Haubert to participate in meeting per A82449 emergency
teteconference
Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve, and Commissioner Beam seconded the motion
Rotl catt: commissioners Beam, Houston, Mitey, lglesias, Thompson, vukasin, Kaptan
Motion approved by 7 votes.

Agenda taken out of order:

NEW BUSINESS

A. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE
PROCESS REQUIREMENTS IN THE MANAGEMENTAGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
AUTHORTTY AND AEG MANAGEMENT OAKLAND, LLC ("AEG"), ON A CASE By CASE
BASIS UNTIL JUNE 30,2025, FOR CONTRACTS OR PURCHASES NECESSARY TO
RESTORE THE COLISEUM STADIUM TO FUNCTIONALITY AND SAFEW, INCLUDING
CONTRACTS FOR EQUIPMENT, REPAIRS, INSTALLATIONS, AND FIRE SAFETYwas
submitted for approvat. Commissioner Houston moved to approve, and
Commissioner Beam seconded the motion Rott Catt: Commissioners Beam, Houston,
Mitey, Kaptan, lgtesias, Thompsom, Haubert and Vukasin approved. The motion was
approved by 8 votes.

b. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AND ENTER

INTO A CONCESSION LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH SMG FOOD AND BEVERAGE, LLC
(coNcESStoN LICENSEE) FOR THE OAKLAND ALAMEDA COUNry COLISEUM

STADIUM, FOR A ONE-YEAR TERM, WITH PAYMENTS TO CONCESSION LICENSEE OF

50/o OF GROSS RECEIPTS AND EXPOSURE OF THE AUTHORITY FOR LOSSES FOR FIRST

$250,000 AND AFTER $500,000 OF LOSSES was submitted for approvat. Commissioner
Kaptan moved to approve, and Gommissioner Houston seconded the motion. Rott

Catt: Commissioner Beam, Houston, Mitey, Kaptan, lglesias, Thompson, Haubert and
Vukasin approved the motion. The motion was approved by 8 votes.

OPEN FORUM



Zennie Abraham suggested creating a sub committee to oversee the handoff on the
planned purchase.

REPORTS

5a.
ED Henry Gardner updated the Board that payment has been received for the legal fees for
Defiance of Bonds. lf you can play Oakland, you can play anywhere. Mr. Gardner gave a recap
qf the history of that statement. Mr. Gardner informed the Board of the installation of the
qoccer field.
sb.
General Manager Nicole Strange updated the board on upcoming events. GM Strange
highlighted the incredible NBA all-star weekend held here at the Coliseum. GM Strange
recapped with videos of the Coliseum Murals and the All-Star NBA events. Both videos are
Iocated on the Coliseum website. The HBCU classic ticket sales were at a record all-time high.
The GM shared and announced the Community lmpact report for 2O24 which is available on
the Coliseum website.

Chair Miley and the Board of Commissioners thanked all involved with the success of the lugR
events at the Oakland Coliseum. Suggestion to bring Day of the Green back.

OPEN FORUM
Zennie Abraham congratulated staff on the success of events. Suggestion for creating Sports
Commission for the upcoming Super Bowl event. Oakland First!

Ray Bobbitt from African American Sports Entertainment Group congratulated the AEG team
and JPA staff for their teamwork for the success of the NBA events.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were submitted for January t7,2025. Commissioner Houston moved to approve,
and Commissioner Haubert seconded the motion. Roll Call: Commissioners Beam, Haubert,
Houston, Miley, Kaplan, lglesias, Thompson, and Vukasin approved. The minutes were
approved by 8 votes.

OPEN FORUM
Zennie Abraham suggested creating an Advisory Board.

closED sEssloN
The Board moved to Closed Session at 10:20a.m.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

The Board has nothing to report

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 11:10 a.m.



March 28,2025

Honorable Chairperson Nate Miley and Commissioners of the Authority

5.a

1. Second Quarter Budget Report

The Second Quarter Budget Report covers the period July 1,,2024 to December 3L, 2024. The
budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25 is 541.,397,000. At the end of the second quarter, we are trending
toward a balanced budget at the end of the fiscal year.

REVENUES

Budgeted revenues for FY 2024-25 are 531,857,000. At the end of the second quarter, revenues
are 519,338,086, sixty-five percent {65%l of the budget. This number is skewed by the
S15,000,000 received from contributions by the City and County for the entire fiscal year.
Nonetheless, given current trends in other categories, we project revenues will exceed budget
by a pproxi mately S1,500,000.

The second largest category of revenues is the Warriors debt service payment of
510,691,000. While the actual amount received at the end of the second quarter is only
$Zl+,194, which represents the interest payment, the balance has been paid in the third quarter
and will be reflected in that report.

EXPENDITURES

Budgeted expenditures are $41,,397,000, offset by S 9,540,000 of fund balance, equaling
$3 1,857,000 of revenues.

Administration expenses are budget at 59+6,000, which includes 485,000 for the closed
Empower Retirement Plan for former employees of the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum,
lnc., the predecessor to the Joint Powers Authority. The balance of approximately 461,000 is for
JPA staff, office supplies, equipment and miscellaneous expenditures. By year end, we expect
this category to be under budget.

Legal has not incurred any cost in the first half of the fiscal year. Audit fees are projected to be
slightly under budget.



Coliseum operations are budgeted at S13,283,000 and are projected to be under budget by
approximately 52,000,000. Management fees are projected to be at budget by year
end. Capital expenditures are budgeted at 511,690,000, and at current rate projected to be
spent by the end of the year.

The debt service budget is approximately 513,000.000. The Stadium bonds have now been fully
retired and the only remaining outstanding bonds are the Arena bonds, scheduled to be retired
on Februa ry 1,,2026. At that point, there will be no outstanding debt on the facilities.

The Second Quarter budget chart is attached to this report

2. Food and Beverage Service for the Stadium

The contract with SMG to provide concessionaire services at the Stadium has been executed.
AEG has completed the necessary cleaning and repairs to make the kitchen facilities
operational. We expect to begin service at the first Roots game on Saturday, March 22,2025.

3. The JPA Treasurer (County Auditor) has proposed an amendment to the contract with our
outside auditor, Macias Gini & O'Connell, LLP (MGO), for a two year extension for Fiscal Years
ending June 30, 2025, in an amount not to exceed 557,0!2, and June 30, 2026, in an amount
not to exceed 558,722, for a sum of 5t15,734.

I recommend approval of the resolution.

4. Outside Legal Council

The JPA legal counsel have prepared a resolution authorizing the retention of outside legal
counsel on an as needed basis to assist in a variety of legal matters that might require additional
legal support in providing advice and counsel, and to represent the Authority in litigation and
administrative proceedings. The resolution is for an amount not to exceed $250,000. The
current budget for outside legal expenses is sufficient to cover expenses for the remainder of
the fiscal year and no additional adjustment is needed at this time. As we develop the budget
for next fiscal year, we will reassess any additional adjustments.

I recommend approval of the resolution.

Respectfu I ly su bm itted,

Henry L. Gardner
Executive Director



E,H
}E { q 

F i B i E

3i3g#g$;;
E g fi 38 Bo6

=oo3oU<ia
d

=
3

m6x-?n>r>c!
=-Ocl!o=m3; F ='{ = 

E E
^-; ! {vg{\iEde s *9*B 6' ?
; ilg 5

mi; ox=
13o5g
c
o

--t

R o=oF S
a-i=l-rEsBils;I e
Es 3[I.9
+it I f
dood

oo
mx
E'ol
_-q

c
o

2
!1
I5

cq

c
gr

o

o

o

a

lo

f
=6'

c

I
d

o
=.
a

e

@

a
o
o
3
3

5

o

E

9I

o

q

l_
IEla
lm
taD
ta

lu

l.
Il-Itrlc
l@lo
l*

oHuAEOooo
ooooooooo

5Na@tts
5A
Aq
!@

6

N
550
'@ b'oeN<)
PAO

NO
NFqOO!oo@o!EOFO
aoooooooooooooo

s!!9trPoooooor OOO

O NNSF
ts!o!o!
lpF95;P90@ o o {o cooPooa65005mts

6

ts
!
@
u

@ +c)F
apoooN5C'(oON,5OFO
ooooooooooooooo

N PO
000u.5
aooooooooooooooo

N

PqN6APo\lu{@o500
@o{5NAO@6N
NOSUO

0

lFtsluaPoN
IOUNOoN@loNoo@ualoNd6ts!ts
lbbbbb'oblooooooolooooooo

6

Iooo

!
oe5
o
a

l-alaN slo6A!!luoouo
looooo
looooo

eOP(oP{
}IJg Poor ots(o, 6Or@ u

ItsN
lNhlsoN
1'9.!, .1r
lh@@lusot@@o

@
6o
o

N
@o@ooooooo

lp
l'atueulo@!
IOOOo(9oooo

NO

o5oo

Itsto
l* u'ol@60
le -o -olooooooooo

N
!P\]o

}J
UQ@u
!osooooOO

N
N@
POb'o!a50

I.'
&6U
oooooo

llt
ll i' l.!'
llslr
ll 5lO

IIEIE

ll;l-
ilqln

ll*l
ll=l=

Il.slFIIOIO

ll8l8l

ll*l*
llolo
llolo

ilil,

il;l*

o

E

-o' z
F1 O
d-= D

iisE
3 an'F
0J m+^Ii3egiSi
>xg<
aq4g
#H-qH
o ort---
tr,F S

tsL E
5-

ov
i

6
o
CL

o
o

-.to
g

lFt5
lh
l5
oool*

I

l*lalN
lE

5
oo!
Aq
!

q
os
ou

ooo

o

r
6o
O
ooo

ll*1,
ll oloilolo
llolo

ll"l
ll !lailolu
ll-alts

IIHIE

ilJ,
ll'@l'ollu loil!lo
ll olo
II OIO
ilolo

N

o
o

6
u
\lo

N

F
!

l_
lm
l{
IPlolo
lo

I

I

Il{l6
lJ.,
l@
l@lol-

0

6
tg

Ec
too

!
o
oc
o-'

NH
o6H
]- -6 }J&oos{@ow@

w{
a
o

lNl6
\o
@

I

I

l_
l@
l.!-Iot6
lo

iltll-l*ll@lh M
Il@lo ollalo P[6ld e
llolo Nll6la @

llorlo u

ou
N
u
!(o

s

o
@

Oo

\j
(o

!

lel5
lat66'o
oo

L

t'

o
N
l.r
N
co



ASM Global Oaktand

General Manager's Board Report

March 28,2025

Event Activity

Added Events:

o j-hope - (March 31 + April t, ZO25)
o We Them Ones Comedy Tour - (April S, ZO25)
o PBR: Pendleton Whisky Velocity Tour - (April 19, ZO25)
o The Millennium Tour - (April 26, ZO2S)
o Sunidhi Chauhan - (May 9,2025)
o 2 Primos De Cuidado Y Su Madrina Tour - (May 17, 2025)
o Nine lnch Nails - (August 6, ZOZS)

r BABYMONSTER - (September 10, 2OZSI
o Sleep Token - (October 10, 2025)
o Oakland Roots (17) Regular Season Home Games (March 22 - Octob er 25,2O2S)

(stadium)



OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO.2025.06

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE RETENTION OF
OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL TO ASSIST THE OAKLAND.ALAMEDA COUNTY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY WITH LEGAL SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED
BASIS FOR A PROJECTED NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $25O,OOO OVER
THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

WHEREAS, the Oakland City Attorney and the Alameda County Counsel serve as joint
Legal Counselto the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Joint Powers Authority ("Authority") and
the Authority's Executive Director and Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, from timetotime requires the assistance of outside legal
counsel to provide advice and counsel, and to represent the Authority in litigation and
administrative proceedings; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize its joint Legal Counsel to secure assistance
on an as needed basis over the next twelve months from law firms with specialized expertise to
assist joint Legal Counsel in providing legal counsel to the Authority, to be determined by joint
Legal Counsel and the Executive Director; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Authority's Board of Directors hereby
authorizes its joint Legal Counsel to negotiate engagement letter agreements between the
Authority and the outside law firm or firms chosen by joint Legal Counsel and approved by the
Executive Director; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority's Board of Directors hereby authorizes Henry
Gardner, the Authority's Executive Director, to execute such agreement(s) between the Authority
and the law firm(s) selected by joint Legal Counsel for a total amount not to exceed two hundred
fifty thousand dollars for a period of twelve months for the purpose of providing legal assistance
to the Authority's joint Legal Counsel on an as-needed basis.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the governing board of the Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority, this 28th day of March, 2A25, by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:

NATE MILEY, CHAIR

ATTEST

SECRETARY



OAKLAND.ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025.07

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH MACIAS
GINI & O'CONNELL LLP FOR AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE OAKLAND.ALAMEDA COUNTY

GOLISEUM AUTHORITY AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $f 15,734.00.

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement ('JPA
Agreement") between the city of oakland ("City") and the County of Alameda ("county")
established the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority ("Authority") whose powers are
exercised by a Board of Commissioners ("Board") appointed by the City and the County; and

WHEREAS, the Authority retained the services of [Vlacias Gini & O'Connell LLP ('MGO')
to perform audit services for the Authority by an Agreement dated September g, 2014, as
amended by that First Amendment dated May 18, 2017, that Second Amendment dated July 31,
2020, and that Third Amendment dated May 31 ,2022 (collectively, the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement is currently scheduled to expire on August 15, 2025 and the
Authority and MGO desire to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional period of two
years at an additional cost of not to exceed One Hundred Fifteen Thousand Seven Hundred
Thirty-four Dollars ($1 15,734.00); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement authorizes the Authority to terminate the Agreement at any
time during the term;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Authority Board does hereby approve
the Fourth Amendment to Agreement with Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP, as shown in Exhibit A,
extending the term of the Agreement for two years to and including August 15, 2027 and
increasing the contract sum by $1 15,734.00; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority's Executive Director is hereby authorized
to execute the Fourth Amendment to Agreement for and on behalf of the Authority.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the governing board of the Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority, this 28th day of March, 2025, by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:

NATE MILEY, CHAIR

ATTEST:

SECRETARY



FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Fourth Amendment to Agreement ("Fourth Amendment") is made on this

day of March2l,2a25, by the oakland Alameda county Coliseum Authority

("OACCA") and Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP ("Contractor") with respect to that

cettain agreement entered by them on September 9,2014, and amended by the First

Amendment entered on May ll,z}l7,and amended by the Second Amendment entered

on July 31,2020, and amended by the Third Amendment entered on May 3l,20zz
(collectively, the "Agreement") pursuant to which Contractor provides OACCA Audit

services to the OACCA.

For valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby

acknowledged, OACCA and Contractor agree to amend the Agreement in the following

respects:

1. Except as otherwise stated in this Fourth Amendment, the terms and provisions of this

Fourth Amendment will be effective as of the date this Fourth Amendment is executed

by the OACCA ("Effective Date").

2. The term of the Agreement is currently scheduled to expire on August 15,2025. As of
the Effective Date, the term of the Agreement is extended through August 15,2027,

unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 20 of the Agreement.

3. In consideration for Contractor's additional services, the OACCA shall pay Contractor

in an additional amount not to exceed One Hundred Fifteen Thousand Seven Hundred

Thirty-Four Dollars ($115,734). As a result of these additional services the not to

exceed amount has increased from Five Hundred Fourteen Thousand Two Hundred

Twenty Dollars (fi514,220) to Six Hundred Twenty-Nine ThousandNine Hundred

Fifty-Four Dollars ($629,954) over the remaining term of the Agreement and any

amendments.

4. A Revised Exhibit B, Payment Terms, is attached to this Amendment, and

incorporated by this reference.

5. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION:

a. By signing this Third Amendment and Exhibit D, Debarment and

Suspension Certification, Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with

Page 2 of2



applicable federal suspension and debarment regulations, including but not

limited to 7 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 3016.35, 28 CFR 66.35,29

CFR 97.35, 34 CFR 80.35, 45 CFR 92.35 and Executive Order 12549.

b. By signing this Amendment, Contractor certifies to the best of its

knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,

declared ineligible, or voluntary excluded by any federal department

or agency;

(2) Shall not knowingly enter into any covered transaction with a person

who is proposed for debarment under federal regulations, debarred,

suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from

participation in such transaction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second
Amendment to the Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

OAKLAND ALAMEDA COI.JNTY
COLISEUM AUTHORITY

MACIAS GINI & O'CONNELLLLP

by:

B By
frnNi- lpuiu

Henry Gardner
Executive Director

Signature

annie Louie
Date: Name:

Printed

Approved as to Form and Legality: Title Partne r

Rvan Attorney

Joil-^* fl*,rfu\ Date:
3/6/2O2s

By:

Name: Jordan Flanders
Title: Deputy City Attorney

Approved as to Form:
Donna R. Counsel

frwl"nn 5. Utul-il.cBy

By signing above, signatory warrants
and represents that he/she executed this
Agreement in his/her authorized
capacity and that by his/her signature
on this Agreement, he/she or the entity
upon behalf of which he/she acted,
executed this

Andrea L. Assistant

Page 2 of2



1

2

REVISED EXHIBIT B
PAYMENT TERMS

Except as expressly modified by this Exhibit B, all terms and conditions of the
original Exhibit B - Payment Terms are and remain in full force and effect.

OACCA will pay Contractor upon successful completion and acceptance of the
following services listed below, within thirty (30) days, upon receipt of invoice.

Fiscal Year Ending

June30,2025

June30,2026

Amount

$57,012

$58,722

1J.

4.

Invoices will be approved by the OACCA.

Total payment under the terms of this Agreement will not exceed the total amount
of Six Hundred Twenty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-Four ($629,954).
This cost inciudes all taxes and all other charges.

ExhibitB

Page 1 of I



EXHIBIT D

Oakland Alameda County Coliseum Authority
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

The contractor, under penalty ofperjury, certifies that, except as noted below, contractor,
its principals, and any named or unnamed subcontractor:

o Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or

determination of ineligibility by any federal agency;

o Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by

any federal agency within the past three years;

. Does not have a proposed debarment pending; and

o Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a

court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct

within the past three years.

If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space.

Exceptions will not necessary result in denial of award, but will be considered in
determining contractor responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to
whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates of action.

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative
sanctions. The above certification is part of the Standard Services Agreement.
Signing this Standard Services Agreement on the signature portion thereof shall
also constitute signature of this Certification.

CONTRACTOR: Macias eini & o'connell LLP

annie Louie
PRINCIPAL TITLE: Partner

ExhibitD

Page 1 ofl

SIGNATURE fiati. DATE: 3/6/202s



"{4

ii-l

i.:
i.

I



tr
(d
)-ap.
l-l r

(n
(1
o

rC,
o
po
i-r{
t-Ja
w
(}
U)
1
l-a
|-lrh
U)

tr
fl
J

..O' :fn
.V.C

h g(4
\f

=z = E o q)
-taff-ref
1- ll) Jqs + E- d *
E-: } #E \nio a- q 

= U
+4 f, Y. (-6=a =. atg 3 I ;il
58 e
lj a-
='E o
Po,'cL
== 6
t-.:. .)or(D O
-O E€; ead
!f. (D

5aoq3
Ol
dfr
(D

(n

I.J

rn
'c)

O^ .\
rl-

7 /rt
rDO
C-r

='r}rD
O- LU.,Pow
) Li-

=C*1

=. ()oC}
OJ

-toa
a {/1g.

-a
rt).n
ttl



s)o h*i 'P
gr; frEf a.
= = 

Fdr

=*.Ecr n
== \r'
+ fl-'t< c

!g tE/*= 'ru
r.6- h,X "r LUilr u)
:j ._ \Jd_k, ns'g \r*qEy, 9l (t)

.D \./
n F_re
-:Y trrl o

?rF;H
f"

c)-
r-t"

;'
rq
t-f)
FF
rll
:5
o-
s).t
fi-
LN

sdfa;s;Ei[]f
;#aiEHiq#i=!
+I--'o j q==a=ll
+dA6t='-*edfrgri
fr=6-E=:BJqlEePeq5=H5.gdE*r:

EEB€ i i==€x q=
-olr6-=6 9o5'o

- rO-< f- = 
gtu f-+ < o '< f

o='
OJ

; H arrB r$pH 
=H 

a;[ie,i=3qPiqB
3nilifl*3$iEEf Hi
:l=alo:o=+o=n<or
'-''5-{ 

= 
isa}>S€ =:HTdi3i$F+s=1

s d {.\q 
=';loa=

o o +! ^+o =='o >c --l:rx::Yof=fcfo
a;e H *;: i i it3-oh=oi;=_".o==$q.
#E3:q: ia=€eTs-u:h€133_aq
6:qgTa93:--;-
d; 

==0,=6-daofi= desT?5 +o ':x 0 = 
rD -* rD

- lq-.J - ar I _.vr o ;

qatrfi.x:i=gE3i

=s€Egia+*Ea.;":x="EEE€g€#€Ifi=
.; 4=;lEEf+[iH
E *-€ a6-' X o rDf,

A-



K
Fsl-(
J-)s

orq
(?
HlJtJoF(|-)
f.+

w
m(n

H\.,c
F<
l-J
U)
Fte
CT
i-J.
FaJ
Flr
r.+
lrf ro
w

i3
"Tt s
qoq
69
OJ

-oo5s3
oix
3!oo
ts

=i.
ab

63T!,4d
(q
o
36

sl
f,
9.s

0
6
3

r|tr >T
=3 o-q,
ox-af Y 0<
s :'=;!
o [e 3
€ K3e
iJ'ud-
6|4 =00

ilia=
*Q-o
io=:
rD0s

=s:h fr:,
^.otum:,^oao;.a3*mi/io
9tiosocLo 

=_

< -= :-.+(D=
f o a

Pls
=idsq5' 

=._o- =@$-q
f,Jo

=s63+auQ='
Q*n
o+=

o

-'o(H $r
=':fr
d. ='*
iloq LD
q:l cl
o +Fi =>o-o -u

5(D
lr:
6ii
o(Dm=
uio
di d.
0qos::
..:- o
OB
5a(}:t
+0r
sa!
Aa6'o
o6'
o;+
3e.
Qo

I

oo
fr'

3
.D

3
(D
f
iJ
1.

-=

.D
$
s
5

:J.o

6
o
n

o
3

r
s
/D

rDo

6:
3
D
o
:..

3
a'

{D

3
ts

€
o
o

(D

o

c

o
o

i.[ o!i5OD
r.ii o

=o
o
I

o
o

--{

rD
ai.
lD
0

o
€
=

p *3I{E--$ci 6o
=.s o od:'E 4.. *..
Hir['q"TiE;&*n*eaEgrtE=+q;I

P<o=o';6aliP:"*aoX::r.7-;o=[io

a$* qfts[$ra
qrE e;g[*qa+3;' sqd;=86'isl *[faffl1I* =1 o r J o 5 ?;+Eq{ qglsIr+
a*H +rfsa:;
=Ffi =dgt6E3;E"e T€Efir.E
rdE q$=€E"is
o d I I7=E d-a
A. 3 €"'ggiiqep e E EIaAE
= d i adi:ri
5 [ 9 e+HgP
$ H * fl$A fr-5 ;. F ti+ e-o - *- co\
= r a ;'o + A: o sq ir;f,x
I ^ U5'- Y* r e- s;E H

3 : E 3?E g
u;JOS
: c; ; HRo ?3 E { ?: #+ $+ qi 

=. !3.0 0 
='r {' d 3.< P Ea' 5 ii ;6+ aa s B air fr

J:jB A s q'g.e g
i 

= - -. 1+ i l. ac I
==Y-Ot4 Q o j= +

o+)ffd€ + T dX q

x I n n5 sa 6 * Eo n.
oa-ogf
d:lo
b-aqBoca

6Pa;
od
=a)q.o

ir. i,
66

.}

o

oc5

TD

A,

o
o
a
Eo
a.

0q
io
a
B

s,:
5',
o

or

6

a.
dq*.)T

o
ID

E.
0q

o
3o
o

g
6'
3o

ol
o_

Ig.

o
o,

(D

3

o
ryqo
3
(0

o

o
0q
o
3
s

o

o

o
!!"

gq

o

o

o-

o

rD

a0

OJ

o-
rD

on

0

Q=a0
f,3
i63mR'o
oro0
didosl
1;5oa
d+o:o
=>
6'&

U)o

gq
d_
rD

o
(D

()
(b
fi,:,
o-
o
r}
A}

3
oq
s

f,
g.

!,

:J
oq
o

o
o

o
5o0
o

d6"3
rD

6',!r
!)
f
s
a

am
$61

ci ='s.6
OJ

+rD
6I- o€r
c€
0",
-q6qmO
tu4
o55r,0o)
qJ6

f0 0_
qE
36'

*o63
:o o_os
HA
oru
s€
5:J-cta
o13ga

.9
9o
;$

69oR
!1p
+JJ^
od
39q

-<- x@6'
3b

y.o

p6-
SJrrc9o
of

a='o
o0
E
;il

o
{D

=:5

s



iT.{ro
l-O
tJ
)El
lEa.t1
(D
A
l.-/.1

o
()
HHP
i-<H
)-)
;-a
)-a
H
tJ
lrrJ c
()
FD
r'+
|rt o

oHl-,a
r)

trt

o
C).

(7n-n
V1

='
_!-na
-.rDDm^
lU - ;

(|c*"ru 'a
do:rc-g$

o-.
\u f -'
Fo-c

o

tA tv

J*+
rD lD =.gJ

n-9
+ iJ:, a

Z. X, ZUUU
:33utus
6*dfr**orDlDaaaems
dfrn6n
aarDrDoUUUooo
1\a*ds

,oo
1)
G)
ln

ol
:r.
O
5

a
.D

fD

l!

o
3

OJ
3
s)

0c
f}
3
o

"2.

O
:f
0
rs\g
r}

6

flo
E6
o-
,* 'I^ !1;r- .-.i
0J=
6'E36'(D=

ii5
.t

$

o

E.

='fa
Co
.D

a:x{D a1{):l:J
;s
ft:Iil- i,t

'eS
e

5O
{}a

*tr
5
G

:s
$'
=
,.l

:L
l)sc
;+-
.D



wo
A

$-r
d
)-a
)dr
1,1

op,
no
HH
lJH
F.{*)
rA
L.rH
l-)
Ira r
(}
s
r'+
l-a ro
H
,Ja
o
L)

o
a,

(&
0a

r-f

sa

U)

i-?

HJ

""1
q.
a

s
L
fi
o

E

f
aI:

>
b-
s
*)3f)
fi

g
G

CT

:i'L
iJ

c
C

CJ(!

It
il,s
a:.
i)f
o

s-$
B's
0/

11)

r
rD
o)

rD

n
e.
!!,
f
6-

x
rD

al
r0
:3
.u.
c)3
!g
e
ab

s
=a
5I
m
0
(].g
al

as

=s-+
; ra- ::

ng,"
ts-O:l.Cu
tsqq
la;.=

-+ iJ6s
"De
$il|il {'

I1!

Eia
:J

u' O.t

<o
at *h
UL
Q,E.D:6?
J{)

; r'J

Xu
tr{il
o?3u
*fr
:s

-"1

r1) mt4 :,
^ a-.v.g

6-D+
llc>

oo
->A

(<dD
0 '.+

a'ff
<i ;'D_-

^<

Jf
fD q,

0rlD
3d
fi=
*r.
r}tu

"< Q_
{(n
.D:
o tu

'Ifa

(f^

o- !4
l!rl)
fli4
tu

4PSAF r9P Ai
a il 

- 
i! ., tV 4 6 UA ;

=. T I rD ; ,:L o (D
oo;a'rD iq3 .I?-
aavd-

) r: = cL:D *O ts :t !r'<:.-n-**..i^-.+C]-oln13""i9.;i:a,i,5: 35' (:'':'^; a n - rD a,d"t 3;& 4ql" :.Dq5:.D:6 6P= F=D fi r:i-.a ^ P =' rD Y
e, I.d,{ s H: T =*j-)
fir,*^'l,ia--.Oo

frD+;J tr,6 zn
3 j+6p f+3. f *
-l ,naYxY.-;-.i i q:D i.: oi o- r.'=:1--U-

"?E:38 r.[ *H"; Cl- "1 -.j :- :.'; n ;t A:roXs9,5tLo-c
-"*6,a>S -'Yl Sil+€clc:o 3Ca. =:6=q?:;63 +3
41C O O t -:l O O
^ - a 1 ri - l: :5 d q +-.5 lH'D {
- ai =.< f, ru I ,+ Y:'vsrr:u3_u
3crs6< 9f,s '6
:""1+rmtuI:s3: --:ri1 =+.^ ETi.=';rov"brl o-1'.r, K;.s 5

:;'; =U ^r 
U :< iI

:.-0$;I=sFdallriu'o
- = 6 r n u .r /D*-:En *c 5 o-
-l*{orDuc--"
oisKcr1
S o A: s.e 3u-(n
-O-arJ,n:4, r 5€ 0a ji cr
35irq *l 0D.a)DaI,j'r;s f t 3*{.ai !-ti, m.10i.0;-
-h-E n p

+H-f-: clq 6 c-l,i,*-;E tf 3o"-<'--l *; e.u icc ?Tl f ; ;
?,!l: o- (trD 6
;iri oro
$(F



C)no
1r
)-JH
|J
t'+
lrr r
F{
l-)

0q
F4\*{
!5
Q,.
Fs
F+
(}
w

w tJ1
dtu0Jr+ -lrD TD

))
{DO
J:)
dd

ZZ99
(}O
J.'i :-
t^\ l-\o' o'
F-:. -)\; *
a ,u

3t^t^' Ar>.. +'rhPa"
r;=
O t){4 rD

Ai ni(/'6

a
d
OJ

-trD

3
$
:f
-Z
rl

-C)

-rt
\,
!
4.,:
N

h
*
o
".l\.

uq

\s
s
\{\
U

o
!
rD

ui

a
d

-+rD

3
o
:f

Z
p

()
$
l--\

tn'

:-\J(4
r

rd

U

rD'

^-L
a.i\.
n\
*
a.i

\
h
a
Fi




